
Please ask for  Elaine Wilkes: Telephone (01362) 656354 
e-mail: elaine.wilkes@breckland.gov.uk 

 

 
AGENDA 

 

NOTE: In the case of non-members, this agenda is for information only 

 
 
 

Committee - STANDARDS COMMITTEESTANDARDS COMMITTEESTANDARDS COMMITTEESTANDARDS COMMITTEE 

Date & Time - TUESDAY, 4 AUGUST, 2009 AT 2.15 pm 

Venue - NORFOLK ROOM, CONFERENCE SUITE, 
ELIZABETH HOUSE, WALPOLE LOKE, DEREHAM 

 
 

 

Members of the Committee requiring further information, or with specific 
questions, are asked to raise these with the appropriate officer at least two 
working days before the meeting.  If the information requested is available, 

this will be provided, and reported to Committee. 

 

Committee Members 
  
Mr. M. Eveling JP (Independent) 
Mrs. J. Jenkins (Independent)(Chairman) 
Mr. D. Myers (Breckland) 
Mrs. M. Oechsle JP (Parish) 

Mr. B. Rayner (Parish) 
Mr. G. Ridgway (Independent) 
Mr. F. Sharpe (Breckland) 
Mr. M. Whittley (Parish) 
Mr. D. Williams JP (Breckland) 
 

 
 

 Persons attending the meeting are 
requested to turn off mobile telephones 

Member Services  
Elizabeth House, Walpole Loke, 
Dereham Norfolk, NR19 1EE 
 

 

Date: Friday, 24 July 2009  
 
 
 

Public Document Pack



Standards Committee 
4 August 2009 

 

 

PART APART APART APART A    

ITEMS OPEN TO THE PUBLICITEMS OPEN TO THE PUBLICITEMS OPEN TO THE PUBLICITEMS OPEN TO THE PUBLIC    

 

 Page(s) 
herewith 

1. MINUTES  1 - 3 

 
To confirm the minutes of the meeting held on 23 June 2009.  

 

2. APOLOGIES   

 To receive apologies for absence.   

3. URGENT BUSINESS   

 To note whether the Chairman proposes to accept any item as urgent 
business pursuant to Section 100(B)(4)(b) of the Local Government Act 
1972.  

 

4. DECLARATION OF INTEREST   

 Members are asked at this stage to declare any interests that they may have 
in any of the following items on the agenda.  The Members’ Code of Conduct 
requires that declarations include the nature of the interest and whether it is a 
personal or prejudicial interest.  

 

5. NON-MEMBERS WISHING TO ADDRESS THE MEETING   

 To note the names of any non-members wishing to address the meeting.   

6. APPLICATION FOR DISPENSATION - WATTON TOWN COUNCIL  4 - 6 

 
Report of the Deputy Chief Executive.  

 

7. APPLICATION FOR DISPENSATION - SCARNING PARISH COUNCIL   

 
Members will recall that an application for dispensations for the parish 
councillors on Scarning Parish Council came before the Committee on 12th 
July, 2007.  The dispensations were in respect of the Former Highway 
Surveyor’s Land at Daffy Green and the Scarning Fuel Allotment Charity.  
The dispensations were granted to Councillors Eagle, Glister, Mrs. Magrath, 
Steward, Wadsworth, Faulkner, Mrs. Hudson, Farnham and Ms. Brown. 
 
Following the resignation of one of the parish councillors, a gentleman was 
co-opted and the committee were asked on the 2nd December, 2008 to grant 
this co-opted person a dispensation in respect of the Former Highway 
Surveyor’s Land at Daffy Green and the Scarning Fuel Allotment Charity. 
 
Another resignation has taken place and following the notice of vacancy, Mr. 
L. Spillman has been co-opted on to Scarning Parish Council. 
 
A request has been received from the Clerk to the Parish Council for 
dispensations for Mr. Spillman in respect of the Former Highway Surveyor’s 
Land at Daffy Green and the Scarning Fuel Allotment Charity.  The 
Committee is asked to consider this request and agree to the granting of the 
dispensation.” 
 

 



Standards Committee 
4 August 2009 

 
 

 

 Page(s) 
herewith 

The Committee may like to consider delegating authority to the Monitoring 
Officer to grant dispensations in situations such as this in the future.  
 

8. LOCAL GOVERNMENT OMBUDSMAN ANNUAL REVIEW  7 - 20 

 
Report of the Deputy Chief Executive.  

 

9. UPDATE ON AMENDED CODE OF CONDUCT   

 
To receive an update on the awaited amended Code of Conduct.  

 

10. NEXT MEETING   

 
To note the date of the next meeting on 15 September 2009, which will be 
held in the Anglia Room, Conference Suite, Elizabeth House, Dereham.  

 



1 

BRECKLAND COUNCIL 
 

At a Meeting of the 
 

STANDARDS COMMITTEE 
 

Held on Tuesday, 23 June 2009 at 2.15 pm in 
Norfolk Room, Conference Suite, Elizabeth House, Walpole Loke, Dereham 

 
PRESENT  
Mr M.D. Eveling JP 
Mrs J. Jenkins 
Mrs M. Oechsle 
Mr B.D Rayner 
 

Mr G. Ridgway 
Mr F.J. Sharpe 
Mr D.R. Williams JP 
 

 
In Attendance  
Elaine Wilkes - Senior Member Services Officer 
John Chinnery - Solicitor & Standards Consultant 

 
 Action By 

22/09 CHAIRMAN  
 

  RESOLVED that Mrs. Joan Jenkins be elected Chairman of the 
Committee for the ensuing year.  

 

   

23/09 MINUTES  
 

 The minutes of the meeting held on 28 April 2009 were confirmed as a 
correct record and signed by the Chairman. 
 
Further to Minute 12/09 – Annual Assembly of Standards Committees – 
Mr. Rayner invited Members of the Committee to let him or Mr. Whittley 
have any questions or issues that they would like them to raise when 
they attended the Assembly in October.  

 

   

24/09 APOLOGIES  
 

 Apologies for absence were received from Messrs. D. Myers and M. 
Whittley.  

 

   

25/09 URGENT BUSINESS  
 

 The Chairman agreed to take two items of urgent business as follows: 
 

a) Update on The Planning Protocol - to enable the Committee to 
receive an update and comment on the matter before it was re-
considered at the Council meeting on 9 July 2009; and 
 

b) The Standards Committee (Further Provisions) (England) 
Regulations 2009 (SI 2009 No. 1255) – Additional agenda item 
10 as published in the agenda supplement prior to the meeting, 
to enable the Committee to receive an early update on the 
latest regulations which had just been received.  

 

   

 (a) Planning Protocol (Previous Minute Reference 13/09)   
 

 The Consultant Solicitor reported that the Committee’s 
recommendation on this matter made at its last meeting had been 

 

Agenda Item 1

1



Standards Committee 
23 June 2009 

 
 

2 

 Action By 

considered at the Council meeting on 28 May. 
 
At the Council meeting, Members had been reluctant to agree to 
anything that appeared to constrain their relations with their 
constituents or their roles as Ward Members. 
 
The Council had decided to refer the matter back to the Overview and 
Scrutiny Commission for further consideration.  The Commission had 
accordingly considered the matter at its meeting on 18 June, when 
there was a robust discussion of the Protocol overall and in relation to 
concerns raised about the original wording and suggested 
amendment of the second bullet point in paragraph 2.1 of the 
Protocol. 
 
Following its deliberations, the Overview and Scrutiny Commission 
concluded by recommending some other additional wording to 
paragraph 2.1 but also the deletion in its entirety of the second bullet 
point in that paragraph. 
 
The Protocol with the amendments recommended by the Overview 
and Scrutiny Commission would accordingly be reconsidered at the 
next meeting of the Council on 9 July. 
 
Members noted the position and that there was otherwise full support 
for the principle of having a Planning Protocol.  

   

 (b) The Standards Committee (Further Provisions) (England) Regulations 
2009 (SI 2009 No. 1255) (Agenda item 10)   

 

 The Consultant Solicitor explained that these were further interim 
Regulations governing Standards Committees, details of which were 
as summarised in the explanatory note as circulated. 
 
The additional provisions set out the procedure by which the 
Standards Board for England could take back powers from a 
Standards Committee and set out the circumstances when that could 
be done. 
 
The Regulations also set out the powers under which two or more 
Standards Committees could carry out functions as Joint Standards 
Committees. 
 
The more important part of the Regulations related to the grant of 
dispensations, the revised wording of which was as highlighted in the 
explanatory note.   
 
The amended Regulation in the latter item provided for the grant of 
dispensations to overcome a situation where otherwise the prohibition 
of members eligible to vote on an item of business would upset the 
political balance of the meeting to such an extent as to prejudice the 
outcome of voting in the meeting.  On this point, it was noted that 
there had been no such cases to date but it was felt such an 
application could prove difficult to resolve. 
 
The position was noted.  

 

   

2



Standards Committee 
23 June 2009 

 
 

3 

 Action By 

26/09 APPLICATION FOR DISPENSATION - BAWDESWELL PARISH 
COUNCIL (AGENDA ITEM 7)  

 

 RESOLVED that a dispensation be granted until May 2011 to the 
following named members of Bawdeswell Parish Council to enable 
them to speak and vote on all matters in connection with the land 
known as Adam’s Pit to ensure the smooth running of the 
business of the Parish Council: 
 
 David Shannon, William Mason, Carl Beane, Alex Kirby 
 James Lilwall, David Cockburn and John Mallen.  

Susan Allen  

   

27/09 APPLICATION FOR DISPENSATION – WEASENHAM ALL SAINTS 
PARISH COUNCIL – FORMER HIGHWAYS SURVEYOR’S LAND 
CHARITY (AGENDA ITEM 8)  

 

 The Consultant Solicitor explained that this application was as a result 
of other action in connection with a complaint dealt with by the 
Assessment Sub-Committee.  The application was made in respect of 
all the members of the Parish Council, although there was one existing 
vacancy yet to be filled. 
 
In view of the vacancy, it was proposed that the Monitoring Officer be 
given delegated authority to grant a dispensation to the new Parish 
Councillor when elected. 

 
RESOLVED that  
 
(1) a dispensation be granted until May 2011 to the following 

named members of Weasenham All Saints Parish Council to 
enable them to speak and vote on all matters in connection 
with the Former Highway Surveyor’s Land Charity to ensure 
the smooth running of the business of the Parish Council: 

 
 Christopher McCarthy, Richard Bowyer, Richard Coke, 

Andrew Curry, Jane Elphick and Verena Varley. 
 
(2) the Monitoring Officer be given delegated authority to grant a 

dispensation for the same purpose to the new member of the 
Parish Council when elected.  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Susan Allen  

   

28/09 NEXT MEETING  
 

 Arrangements for the next meeting on 4August 2009 were noted, by 
which time it was hoped the awaited revised Code would have been 
received.  

 

   

 
 
The meeting closed at 3.00 pm 
 
 
 

CHAIRMAN 

3



BRECKLAND COUNCIL 
 
Report of the Deputy Chief Executive to the 
STANDARDS COMMITTEE – 4th August, 2009 
 
APPLICATION FOR DISPENSATION – Watton Town Council 
 

1. Purpose of Report 

1.1 The Committee is asked to consider an application for a dispensation from Watton 
Town Council in connection with the Charlotte Harvey Trust (commonly known at the 
Youth and Community Centre). 

 

2. Recommendations 

 It is recommended that the Committee: 

2.1 Grants a dispensation to all of the named individuals in accordance with Option 3.3.2 
to ensure the smooth running of Watton Town Council in connection with the Charlotte 
Harvey Trust. 

 
Note:  In preparing this report, due regard has been had to equality of opportunity, 
human rights, prevention of crime and disorder, environmental and risk management 
considerations as appropriate.  Relevant officers have been consulted in relation to any 
legal, financial or human resources implications and comments received are reflected in 
the report. 
 

3. Information, Issues and Options 

3.1 Background 

3.1.1 Regulations came into force on 15th June, 2009 entitled The Standards Committee 
(Further Provisions) (England) Regulations 2009 (S.I. 2009 No. 1255). 

3.1.2 These Regulations prescribe the circumstances in which the Standards Committee 
may grant dispensations to Breckland members and parish and town councillors in 
the Breckland area.  If a member acts in accordance with the grant of such a 
dispensation, any participation in business prohibited by the mandatory provisions of 
the Model Codes of Conduct is not a failure to comply with the authority’s Code.  
These Regulations refer to the circumstance where a member, or more usually a 
number of members, finds they are in a position where they have to declare a 
prejudicial interest under the Code of Conduct and leave the room.  In the 
circumstances described in the Regulations, those members might be able to obtain 
a dispensation (i.e. permission) from a Standards Committee to stay in the meeting 
after declaring the interest and either just speak, or speak and vote according to any 
dispensation granted. 

3.1.3 The Regulations state that a Standards Committee may grant a dispensation to a 
member or co-opted member of an authority in the following circumstances: 

 a) because the number of members of the authority prohibited from voting on 
the business of the authority at a meeting exceeds 50% of those members 
that, but for the granting of any dispensations relating to that business, would 
otherwise be entitled to vote on that business; or 

 b) the number of members prohibited from voting on the business of the 
authority at a meeting would, but for the granting of any dispensations relating 
to that business, upset the political balance of that meeting to such an extent 
as to prejudice the outcome of the voting in that meeting. 

Agenda Item 6

4



3.2 Issues 

3.2.1 Watton Town Council consists of 14 members.  There is currently one vacancy.  The 
Clerk has indicated that the Town Council are in the process of co-opting to fill this 
vacancy. 

3.2.2 The Clerk to the Watton Town Council has sent an e-mail, on behalf of all 14 
members requesting a dispensation in connection with the Charlotte Harvey Trust. 

 The e-mail reads: 

 1. The Trust relates to the land and building commonly known as the Youth and 
Community Centre. The Trust is named the Charlotte Harvey Trust. 

 2 The land and building both belong to the Trust. 

 3 The land was left to the youth of Watton in 1834 by Charlotte Harvey.  The 
building was then erected for the use of the youth of Watton but over the 
years has become a venue for all ages.  The Council corporate body is the 
Trustee of the Trust so therefore the Councillors sit as a body to make 
decisions on the running of the Centre.  They are not individual Trustees.  
The Centre has rooms which are hired out to various groups and 
maintenance, cleaning and the general running of the centre are required. 

3.2.3 The Watton Town councillors, namely Barbara Anderson, Richard Crabtree, Brian 
Freeman, Keith Gilbert, Alfred Harvey, Margaret Holmes, Roy Ivory, John McCarthy, 
Lorraine McCarthy, Alan Osborn, Roy Rudling, Christopher Walls, Michael Wassell 
and Bryan Wykes are all trustees of the Charlotte Harvey Trust. 

3.2.4 As the councillors would be required to declare both a personal and prejudicial 
interest and leave the room when any matters concerning Charlotte Harvey Trust 
were before Watton Town Council, a dispensation has been requested. 

3.2.5 The dispensation sought is to speak and vote.  However, the Committee do not have 
to grant dispensations for both, and can decide not to grant the request at all.  The 
Regulations state that the Committee must decide whether it is “appropriate” to grant 
the request.  The Standards for England Guidance states: 

“Clearly there is a difference between being eligible to apply for 
a dispensation and it being appropriate for that dispensation to 
be granted.  The committee will need to balance the prejudicial 
interest of the member seeking the dispensation to vote on an 
item of business, against the potential effect on the outcome of 
the vote if the member is unable to do so.” 

3.3 Options 

3.3.1 To refuse to grant a dispensation to the parish councillors of Watton Town Council in 
connection with Charlotte Harvey Trust. 

3.3.2 To grant a dispensation to the parish councillors of Watton Town Council in 
connection with Charlotte Harvey Trust. 

3.4 Reasons for Recommendation(s) 

3.4.1 To ensure the smooth running of Watton Town Council in connection with the 
Charlotte Harvey Trust it is recommended that Option 3.3.2 above is agreed. 

3.4.2 It is also recommended that delegated authority be given to the Monitoring Officer to 
grant a dispensation for the same purpose to the new member of the Town Council 
when elected. 

5



4. Risk and Financial Implications 

4.1 Risk  

4.1.1 I have completed the Risk Management questionnaire and this report does not 
require a risk assessment because the issues covered by the recommendations are 
not significant in terms of risk. 

4.2 Financial  

4.2.1 None. 

5. Legal Implications 

5.1 None. 

6. Other Implications  

a) Equalities: There are no Equalities implications. 

b) Section 17, Crime & Disorder Act 1998: None 

c) Section 40, Natural Environment & Rural Communities Act 2006: None 

d) Human Resources: None 

e) Human Rights: None. 

f) Other:  [e.g. Children’s Act 2004] None 

7. Alignment to Council Priorities 

7.1 Your Council, Your Services: 

 a) Strengthen community consultation and involvement. 

 b) Involve people in the design and delivery of services which meet their needs. 

8. Ward/Community Affected 

8.1 Watton Town Council. 

 
Background Papers 
None 
 
Lead Contact Officer: 
Name/Post: Susan Allen – Standards Officer 
Telephone: 01362 656395 
Email: sue.allen@breckland.gov.uk 
 
Key Decision Status (Executive Decisions only): 
Non-Key decision and not on Forward Plan] 
 

6



BRECKLAND COUNCIL 
 
Report of the Deputy Chief Executive to the 
STANDARDS COMMITTEE – 4th AUGUST, 2009 
 
LOCAL GOVERNMENT OMBUDSMAN’S ANNUAL REVIEW 
 

1. Purpose of Report 

1.1 To note the Local Government Ombudsman’s comments on his dealings with 
Breckland Council as set out in his annual review attached. 

 

2. Recommendations 
 It is recommended that the Committee: 
2.1 Notes the report. 

 

 
Note:  In preparing this report, due regard has been had to equality of opportunity, 
human rights, prevention of crime and disorder, environmental and risk management 
considerations as appropriate.  Relevant officers have been consulted in relation to any 
legal, financial or human resources implications and comments received are reflected in 
the report. 
 

3. Information, Issues and Options 

3.1 Background 

3.1.1 The Local Government Ombudsman’s annual review for 2008/09 is attached.  It 
provides a summary of the complaints that the LGO have dealt with about the 
Council. 

3.1.2 A change in the way the LGO operates means that the statistics about complaints 
received in 2008/09 are not directly comparable with those from 2007/08.  Therefore 
the annual review focuses mainly on the 2008/09 statistics without drawing 
comparisons. 

3.2 Issues 

3.2.1 The LGO Advice Team received 24 complaints and enquiries against the Council 
during 2008/09. 

3.2.2 These complaints fell into the following categories: three were about housing, two 
were about benefits, five were about location taxation and other public finance, 
seven were about planning and building control and seven complaints fell into the 
category of Other. 

3.2.3 12 of those complaints and enquiries were premature and in a further three cases 
advice was given.  The remaining 9 were forwarded to the LGO’s investigative team.  
In four of the cases there was no evidence of maladministration.  The LGO used his 
discretion not to investigate one case because the complainant had not suffered 
significant injustice, one case was outside the LGO’s jurisdiction and was not 
investigated and three complaints were settled locally. 

3.2.4 No reports were issued against the Council this year. 

3.2.5 The LGO congratulates the Council on the average response time of 17 days, an 
increase on last year but still remaining within LGO’s target of 28 days.  This puts the 
Council in the top 60% of authorities in terms of response times. 

Agenda Item 8

7



3.3 Options 

3.3.1 To note the report with no adverse comments. 

3.3.2 To note with report with adverse comments. 

3.4 Reasons for Recommendation(s) 

3.4.1 It is recommended that the Committee notes the report from the LGO with no 
adverse comments. 

4. Risk and Financial Implications 

4.1 Risk  

4.1.1 I have completed the Risk Management questionnaire and this report does not 
require a risk assessment because the issues covered by the recommendations are 
not significant in terms of risk. 

4.2 Financial  

4.2.1 None. 

5. Legal Implications 

5.1 None. 

6. Other Implications    

a) Equalities: An Equalities Impact Assessment has not been conducted as this is 
not a policy or a procedure. 

b) Section 17, Crime & Disorder Act 1998: None 
c) Section 40, Natural Environment & Rural Communities Act 2006: None 
d) Human Resources: None 
e) Human Rights: None 
f) Other:  [e.g. Children’s Act 2004] None 

7. Alignment to Council Priorities 

7.1 Your Council, Your Services – improve the quality and consistency of services 
provided to our customers. 

8. Ward/Community Affected 

8.1 Breckland wide. 

 
Background Papers: None 
 
Lead Contact Officer:  
Name/Post: Susan Allen – Standards Officer 
Telephone: 01362 656395;  Email: sue.allen@breckland.gov.uk  
 
Key Decision Status (Executive Decisions only): Non-Key decision and not on Forward Plan  
 
Appendices attached to this report:  LGO’s Annual Review for the year ended March 2009 

8



 

The Oaks No 2 
Westwood Way 
Westwood Business Park 
Coventry 
CV4 8JB 

T: 024 7682 0000 
F: 024 7682 0001 
DX:DX 702110 Coventry 6 
W: www.lgo.org.uk 
Advice Team: 0845 602 1983 

Jerry White 
Local Government Ombudsman 
Neville Jones 
Deputy Ombudsman 

 

16 June 2009 
 
 
 
 
 
Mr T Holden 
Chief Executive  
Breckland District Council 
DX 45058 
Dereham 
 
Our ref:  JRW/le 
(Please quote our reference when contacting us) 
 
 
If telephoning contact: Mr S Purser on 02476 820026 
or email: s.purser@lgo.org.uk 
 
 
Dear Mr Holden 
 
Annual Review 2008/09 
 
I am writing to give you a summary of the complaints about your Council that my office has dealt with 
over the past year, set out in the annual review attached. We have changed the name from annual 
letter to annual review to better describe the updated document format. I hope you find the review a 
useful addition to other information you have on how people experience or perceive your services.  
 
The review is split into two sections. The first concerns complaints about your Council and the second 
section provides a general update on LGO developments. This includes our proposal to introduce 
‘statements of reasons’ for Ombudsmen decisions. I would welcome your views on this and any 
comments you may have on the form and content of the review.   
 
We will publish all the annual reviews on our website (www.lgo.org.uk) and share them with the 
Audit Commission.  We will wait for four weeks after this letter before doing so, to give you an 
opportunity to consider the review first.  If any material factual inaccuracy is found we will reissue it. 
We will also publish on our website a summary of statistics relating to the complaints we have 
received and dealt with against all authorities.  
 
I would again be happy to consider requests for me or a senior colleague to visit the Council to 
present and discuss the letter with councillors or staff.  We will do our best to meet the requests within 
the limits of the resources available to us.  
 
I am also arranging for a copy of this letter and the review to be sent to you electronically so that you 
can distribute it easily internally and put the annual review on your Council’s website. You do not need 
to include this covering letter on your website. 
 
 
 

9



This is the last Annual Review that I will have the honour of presenting to your authority. I retire from 
my position as Local Government Ombudsman on 30 September 2009, after more than fourteen 
years in post, in order to become Professor in London History at Birkbeck, University of London. I 
would like to take this opportunity to thank you for the unfailing courtesy I have received from officers 
and Members of the Council during my period in office; and I offer the Council warmest wishes for the 
future.  
 
Yours sincerely 
 
 
 
 
J R White 
Local Government Ombudsman 
 
 

10



 The Local Government Ombudsman (LGO) 
provides a free, independent and impartial 
service. We consider complaints about the 
administrative actions of councils and some 
other authorities. We cannot question what a 
council has done simply because someone 
does not agree with it. If we find something 
has gone wrong, such as poor service, 
service failure, delay or bad advice, and that a 
person has suffered as a result, the 
Ombudsmen aim to get it put right by 
recommending a suitable remedy. The LGO 
also uses the findings from investigation 
work to help authorities provide better public 
services through initiatives such as special 
reports, training and annual reviews.  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
The Local Government Ombudsman’s  
Annual Review  

Breckland District Council 
for the year ended 
31 March 2009 
 
 
 
 
 

11



 

 

Contents of Annual Review 
 
 
 
 

Section 1: Complaints about Breckland District Council 2008/09 ............... 3 

Introduction............................................................................................................... 3 

Enquiries and complaints received ........................................................................... 3 

Complaint outcomes ................................................................................................. 3 

Liaison with the Local Government Ombudsman...................................................... 4 

Training in complaint handling .................................................................................. 4 

Conclusions .............................................................................................................. 5 

Section 2: LGO developments ........................................................................ 6 

Introduction............................................................................................................... 6 

Council First.............................................................................................................. 6 

Statement of reasons: consultation........................................................................... 6 

Making Experiences Count (MEC)............................................................................ 6 

Training in complaint handling .................................................................................. 6 

Adult Social Care Self-funding .................................................................................. 7 

Internal schools management................................................................................... 7 

Further developments............................................................................................... 7 

Appendix 1: Notes to assist interpretation of the statistics 2008/09 ........... 8 

Appendix 2: Local authority report 2008/09

12



 

 3 

Section 1: Complaints about Breckland District 
Council 2008/09 

Introduction 

This annual review provides a summary of the complaints we have dealt with about Breckland 
District Council.  We have included comments on the authority’s performance and 
complaint-handling arrangements, where possible, so they can assist with your service 
improvement.  
 
I hope that the review will be a useful addition to other information your authority holds on how 
people experience or perceive your services.  
 
Two appendices form an integral part of this review: statistical data for 2008/09 and a note to help 
the interpretation of the statistics. 
 
Changes to our way of working and statistics 
 
A change in the way we operate means that the statistics about complaints received in 2008/09 are 
not directly comparable with those from 2007/08. Since 1 April 2008 the new LGO Advice Team 
has been the single point of contact for all enquiries and new complaints. The number of calls to 
our service has increased significantly since then. It handles more than 3,000 calls a month, 
together with written and emailed complaints. Our advisers now provide comprehensive 
information and advice to callers at the outset with a full explanation of the process and possible 
outcomes. It enables callers to make a more informed decision about whether putting their 
complaint to us is an appropriate course of action. Some decide to pursue their complaint direct 
with the council first.  
 
It means that direct comparisons with some of the previous year’s statistics are difficult and could 
be misleading. So this annual review focuses mainly on the 2008/09 statistics without drawing 
those comparisons.  

Enquiries and complaints received 

During 2008/9 the Advice Team received 24 complaints and enquiries.  These fell into the following 
categories: three were about housing, two were about benefits, five were about local taxation and 
other public finance, seven concerned planning and building control and seven complaints which 
fell into the category of Other. 
 
We treated 12 of those complaints and enquiries as premature and in a further three cases advice 
was given.  The remaining nine complaints were forwarded to the investigative team.  Five were 
treated as new complaints and four as premature complaints that had been resubmitted. 

Complaint outcomes 

I decided nine complaints during the year.  In four of those cases (44%) I found no evidence of 
maladministration.  I used my discretion not to investigate one case because the complainant had 
not suffered significant injustice.  On one case I took the view that the matter complained about 
was outside my jurisdiction and so it was not investigated.  Three complaints were settled locally. 
 
 

 

13



 

 4 

Local settlements 
 
A ‘local settlement’ is a complaint where, during the course of our investigation, a council takes or 
agrees to take some action that we consider to be a satisfactory response to the complaint. In 
2008/09, 27.4% of all complaints the Ombudsmen decided and which were within our jurisdiction 
were local settlements. Of the nine complaints we decided against your authority three were 
decided as local settlements. 
 
Two of the local settlements related to complaints about building control.  In one, when inspecting 
foundations to a new extension, the Council's Building Control Surveyor failed to notice that they 
had not been excavated to the correct depth beneath an existing sewer. When the error was 
discovered on a subsequent inspection, the Council required remedial works to underpin the 
foundations. The complainant was put to avoidable expense as a result of the Council's mistake, 
but his builder ought also to have realised the foundations were not properly constructed and so I 
considered that he shared responsibility for the injustice caused. The Council agreed to pay 
compensation of £2,320 in that case.  In the second building control case the complainant was 
seeking information about the construction of a property he purchased.  The Council had 
responded to his complaint but he remained dissatisfied. The Council was willing to help and 
agreed to meet the complainant on site to inspect and to answer his queries.  The Council also 
offered him the opportunity to view digitalised files if it could not answer his queries on site.  I 
considered that this was an appropriate way to settle the complaint. 
 
The remaining case settled locally was about council tax.  The complainants paid their council tax 
by standing order. They received a reminder from the Council suggesting one payment was 
outstanding. They checked that it was paid and tried, unsuccessfully, to query it with the Council. 
The Council issued a court summons. The complainants wrote to the Council providing evidence of 
payment but had not heard the outcome just days before the court hearing. The Council finally 
accepted there had been an error and the court hearing was cancelled. The Council agreed to pay 
£100 compensation in that case.  
 
I am grateful to the Council for its help in resolving these complaints. 
 
Reports 
 
When we complete an investigation, we generally issue a report. This year we issued no reports 
against your Council. 

Liaison with the Local Government Ombudsman 

Formal enquiries were made on two complaints during the year.  Your Council’s average response 
time of 17 days has increased from last year’s time of 15.1 days but remains well within the 
28 days requested.  As has been the case in previous years, I am grateful for your prompt and 
thorough responses and the Council’s readiness to resolve complaints that have been made to me.  
The Council is to be congratulated on this performance. 

Training in complaint handling 

Part of our role is to provide advice and guidance about good administrative practice. We offer 
training courses for all levels of local authority staff in complaints handling and investigation. All 
courses are presented by experienced investigators. They give participants the opportunity to 
practise the skills needed to deal with complaints positively and efficiently. We can also provide 
customised courses to help authorities to deal with particular issues and occasional open courses 
for individuals from different authorities. 

14



 

 5 

I have enclosed some information on the full range of courses available together with contact 
details for enquiries and bookings.  

Conclusions  

I welcome this opportunity to give you my reflections about the complaints my office has dealt with 
over the past year. I hope that you find the information and assessment provided useful when 
seeking improvements to your Council’s services.  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
J R White 
Local Government Ombudsman 
The Oaks No 2 
Westwood Way 
Westwood Business Park 
Coventry 
CV4 8JB          June 2009 

15



 

 6 

Section 2: LGO developments 

Introduction 

This annual review also provides an opportunity to bring councils up to date on developments – 
current and proposed – in the LGO and to seek feedback. It includes our proposal to introduce a 
‘statement of reasons’ for Ombudsmen decisions.  

Council First 

From 1 April 2009, the LGO has considered complaints only where the council’s own complaints 
procedure has been completed. Local authorities have been informed of these new arrangements, 
including some notable exceptions. We will carefully monitor the impact of this change during the 
course of the year.  

Statement of reasons: consultation 

The Local Government and Public Involvement in Health Act 2007 made provision for the LGO to 
publish statements of reasons relating to the individual decisions of an Ombudsman following the 
investigation of a complaint. The Ombudsmen are now consulting local government on their 
proposal to use statements of reasons. The proposal is that these will comprise a short summary 
(about one page of A4) of the complaint, the investigation, the findings and the recommended 
remedy. The statement, naming the council but not the complainant, would usually be published on 
our website.  
 
We plan to consult local authorities on the detail of these statements with a view to implementing 
them from October 2009.  

Making Experiences Count (MEC) 

The new formal, one stage complaint handling arrangement for adult social care was also 
introduced from 1 April 2009. The LGO is looking to ensure that this formal stage is observed by 
complainants before the Ombudsmen will consider any such complaint, although some may be 
treated as exceptions under the Council First approach. The LGO also recognises that during the 
transition from the existing scheme to the new scheme there is going to be a mixed approach to 
considering complaints as some may have originated before 1 April 2009. The LGO will endeavour 
to provide support, as necessary, through dedicated events for complaints-handling staff in adult 
social care departments.  

Training in complaint handling 

Effective Complaint Handling in Adult Social Care is the latest addition to our range of training 
courses for local authority staff. This adds to the generic Good Complaint Handling (identifying and 
processing complaints) and Effective Complaint Handling (investigation and resolution), and 
courses for social care staff at both of these levels. Demand for our training in complaint handling 
remains high. A total of 129 courses were delivered in 2008/09. Feedback from participants shows 
that they find it stimulating, challenging and beneficial in their work in dealing with complaints.  

16



 

 7 

Adult Social Care Self-funding 

The Health Bill 2009 proposes for the LGO to extend its jurisdiction to cover an independent 
complaints-handling role in respect of self-funded adult social care. The new service will 
commence in 2010.  

Internal schools management 

The Apprenticeship, Skills, Children and Learning Bill (ASCL) 2009 proposes making the LGO the 
host for a new independent complaints-handling function for schools. In essence, we would 
consider the complaint after the governing body of the school had considered it. Subject to 
legislation, the new service would be introduced, in pilot form, probably in September 2010.  

Further developments 

I hope this information gives you an insight into the major changes happening within the LGO, 
many of which will have a direct impact on your local authority. We will keep you up to date through 
LGO Link as each development progresses but if there is anything you wish to discuss in the 
meantime please let me know.  
 
 
 
 
 
 
J R White 
Local Government Ombudsman 
The Oaks No 2 
Westwood Way 
Westwood Business Park 
Coventry 
CV4 8JB          June 2009 

17



 

 8 

Appendix 1: Notes to assist interpretation of the 
statistics 2008/09 
 

Introduction 
 

This year, the annual review only shows 2008/09 figures for enquiries and complaints received, 
and for decisions taken. This is because the change in the way we operate (explained in the 
introduction to the review) means that these statistics are not directly comparable with statistics 
from previous years. 
 
 
Table 1.  LGO Advice Team: Enquiries and complaints received 
 
This information shows the number of enquiries and complaints received by the LGO, broken down 
by service area and in total. It also shows how these were dealt with, as follows. 
 
Formal/informal prematures: The LGO does not normally consider a complaint unless a council 
has first had an opportunity to deal with that complaint itself. So if someone complains to the LGO 
without having taken the matter up with a council, the LGO will usually refer it back to the council 
as a ‘premature complaint’ to see if the council can itself resolve the matter. These are ‘formal 
premature complaints’. We now also include ‘informal’ premature complaints here, where advice is 
given to the complainant making an enquiry that their complaint is premature. The total of 
premature complaints shown in this line does not include the number of resubmitted premature 
complaints (see below). 
 
Advice given: These are enquiries where the LGO Advice Team has given advice on why the 
Ombudsman would not be able to consider the complaint, other than the complaint being 
premature. For example, the complaint may clearly be outside the Ombudsman’s jurisdiction. It 
also includes cases where the complainant has not given enough information for clear advice to be 
given, but they have, in any case, decided not to pursue the complaint. 
 
Forwarded to the investigative team (resubmitted prematures):  These are cases where there 
was either a formal premature decision, or the complainant was given informal advice that their 
case was premature, and the complainant has resubmitted their complaint to the Ombudsman after 
it has been put to the council. These figures need to be added to the numbers for formal/informal 
premature complaints (see above) to get the full total number of premature complaints. They also 
needed to be added to the ‘forwarded to the investigative team (new)’ to get the total number of 
forwarded complaints. 
 
Forwarded to the investigative team (new): These are the complaints that have been forwarded 
from the LGO Advice Team to the Investigative Team for further consideration. The figures may 
include some complaints that the Investigative Team has received but where we have not yet 
contacted the council.  

18



 

 9 

Table 2.  Investigative Team: Decisions 
 
This information records the number of decisions made by the LGO Investigative Team, broken 
down by outcome, within the period given. This number will not be the same as the number of 
complaints forwarded from the LGO Advice Team because some complaints decided in 
2008/09 will already have been in hand at the beginning of the year, and some forwarded to the 
Investigative Team during 2008/09 will still be in hand at the end of the year. Below we set out a 
key explaining the outcome categories. 
 
MI reps: where the LGO has concluded an investigation and issued a formal report finding 
maladministration causing injustice.  
 
LS (local settlements): decisions by letter discontinuing our investigation because action has been 
agreed by the authority and accepted by the Ombudsman as a satisfactory outcome for the 
complainant. 
 
M reps: where the LGO has concluded an investigation and issued a formal report finding 
maladministration but causing no injustice to the complainant.  
 
NM reps: where the LGO has concluded an investigation and issued a formal report finding no 
maladministration by the council. 
 
No mal: decisions by letter discontinuing an investigation because we have found no, or 
insufficient, evidence of maladministration. 
 
Omb disc: decisions by letter discontinuing an investigation in which we have exercised the 
Ombudsman’s general discretion not to pursue the complaint. This can be for a variety of reasons, 
but the most common is that we have found no or insufficient injustice to warrant pursuing the 
matter further.   
 
Outside jurisdiction: these are cases which were outside the Ombudsman’s jurisdiction. 
 
Table 3.  Response times 
 
These figures record the average time the council takes to respond to our first enquiries on a 
complaint. We measure this in calendar days from the date we send our letter/fax/email to the date 
that we receive a substantive response from the council. The council’s figures may differ 
somewhat, since they are likely to be recorded from the date the council receives our letter until the 
despatch of its response.   
 
Table 4.  Average local authority response times 2008/09 
 
This table gives comparative figures for average response times by authorities in England, by type 
of authority, within three time bands.  

19



Appendix 2: Local Authority Report - Breckland DC For the period ending -  31/03/2009

LGO Advice Team

1

1

0

1

3

2

0

0

0

2

2

1

2

0

5

3

0

1

3

7

4

1

1

1

7

12

3

4

5

24Total

Forwarded to investigative team
(new)

Forwarded to investigative team
(resubmitted prematures)

Advice given

Formal/informal premature
complaints

TotalOtherPlanning
and
building
control

Public
Finance
inc. Local
Taxation

BenefitsHousingEnquiries and
complaints received

Investigative Team

Total
Outside

jurisdiction
Omb discNo malNM repsM repsLSMI repsDecisions

30 00 4 1 1 901/04/2008 / 31/03/2009

Avg no. of days
to respond

No. of First
 Enquiries

FIRST ENQUIRIESResponse times

01/04/2008 / 31/03/2009 2 17.0

2007 / 2008 13 15.1

2006 / 2007 13 18.9

        Average local authority response times 01/04/2008 to 31/03/2009  

Types of authority <= 28 days 

% 

29 - 35 days 

% 

> = 36 days 

% 

District councils  60 20 20 

Unitary authorities  56 35 9 

Metropolitan authorities  67 19 14 

County councils  62 32 6 

London boroughs  58 27 15 

National park authorities  100 0 0 

2
0


	Agenda
	1 Minutes
	6 Application for Dispensation - Watton Town Council
	8 Local Government Ombudsman Annual Review
	LGO Annual Review_report_Appendix A
	LGO Annual review - report_Appendix B
	LGO Annual Review - report_Appendix C


